


 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Jackson College – Central Campus 
Jackson, Michigan 
January 13, 2020 
 
The regular meeting of the Board of Trustees of Jackson College was held on Monday, 
January 13, 2020 at Jackson College’s Central Campus, located at 2111 Emmons 
Road, Jackson, Michigan 49201. 
 
Board Chairman Barnes called the meeting to order at 6:30pm Eastern Standard Time. 
 
Board Members Present: Sam Barnes, Trustee/Chairman; John Crist, Trustee/Vice-
Chairman; Matt Heins, Trustee; Philip Hoffman, Trustee and, Sheila Patterson, 
Trustee/Secretary and Dr. Ed Mathein, Trustee. 
 
Board Member Absent: Donna Lake, Trustee/Treasurer 
 
Others Present: Dr. Daniel J. Phelan, Dr. Kate Thirolf, Jeremy Frew, Darrell Norris, Lee 
Hampton, Jim Jones, Alana Tuckey, Michael Masters, Kelly Chamber and Sara Perkin. 
 
ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
The minutes of the Regular Board Meeting on November 11, 2019 were considered and 
moved into the record by Chairman Barnes on behalf of the Trustees.  
 
DECLARATION OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
There were no conflicts of interest on the agenda noted by Trustees. 
 
OWNERSHIP LINKAGE 
Public Comments 
There were no public comments.  
 
Trustee Crist provided an update on the Ownership Linkage Committee and shared a 
draft plan for Board consideration and comment. The Committee will continue to refine 
the process and schedule with the first community linkage event occurring this calendar 
year.   
 
GOVERNANCE PROCESS ITEMS FOR DECISION 
Board Self-Evaluation 
Chairman Barnes led a brief review of the Boards annual self-evaluation and asked for 
any items to be advanced for discussion at the coming planning session.  
 
Monitoring Report Schedule 
President Phelan reviewed the continuing work that he and Chief of Staff Perkin have 
been having with the Govern for Impact consultant. He presented a proposed 
monitoring schedule for the Board that would include both Ends and Executive 
Limitations elements.  Following discussion, the Board determined they would move the 



 
Ends monitoring report to August and Treatment of Staff monitoring report to September 
which would better relate to the cycle of the College’s work and activities.   MOTION BY 
TRUSTEE HEINS “To approve the monitoring report schedule with the change of Ends 
to August and Treatment of Staff to September.” MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.  
 
Professional Development Opportunities/Priorities 
Chairman Barnes provided an overview of a list of current development opportunities 
and conferences the Board attends and conversation was had around priority and 
concerns around these events.   
 
Consideration of Spring Planning Session Date 
Following discussion it was determined that not all Trustees are able to make the 
proposed date of April 29th work.  Additional dates will be reviewed and shared to 
determine if consensus is possible.  The consultant from Govern for Impact will also be 
on hand to continue with the Board’s work on Policy Governance. No action was taken. 
 
EXECUTIVE LIMITATIONS ITEMS  
JPEC Governor Appointments 
President Phelan asked for the Board to consider the re-appointments of JPEC 
Governors Jonathan Williams, Don Cooper and Zoe Wilcox.  These terms will be 
effective immediately and will expire on December 31, 2021.  MOTION BY TRUSTEE 
CRIST “to approve the appointments of JPEC Governors Jonathan Williams, Don 
Cooper and Zoe Wilcox. MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.  TRUSTEE MATHEIN 
WAS NOT IN THE ROOM FOR THIS VOTE.  
 
Consideration of Changes to Asset Protection Policy 
President Phelan presented some proposed changes to the Asset Protection Policy for 
the Board’s consideration. MOTION BY TRUSTEE HEINS “To approve the Asset 
Protection Policy as presented.” MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.  
 
Wickwire Property Information 
President Phelan provided an appraisal information on the Wickwire property.  
Discussion on the future intentions of the property was held. Trustee Heins commented 
that he wanted to hear from the Jackson College Foundation about the obligations 
associated with donations of large gifts and their implications upon future gifts.  
Chairman Barnes asked that the topic be carried over to a future meeting when all 
Trustees are present.   
 
INFORMATION REQUESTED BY THE BOARD 
FY 2020 Q2 Financial Report 
President Phelan provided an overview of the FY 2020 Q2 Financial Report.  
 
Outstanding Award Committees 
To be in further alignment with Policy Governance, President Phelan recommended that 
the Board discontinue involvement with the Outstanding Award Committees due to their 



 
operational nature.  The Board agreed and will step back from future involvement with 
these committees.   
 
Distinguished Service Award 
The Board had discussion on potential recipients of the Distinguished Service Award for 
2020.  A final determination and decision will be taken at the March meeting.   
 
SELF-EVALUATION OF GOVERNANCE PROCESS & BOARD PERFORMANCE AT 
THIS MEETING 
This agenda item provided an opportunity for the Board to reflect on how well Policy 
Governance principles were incorporated into each meeting. Trustee Crist commented 
that the Board will continue to need to work together as they work through these 
changes. 
 
ADJOURN 
MOTION BY TRUSTEE HOFFMAN “To adjourn.” MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.  
Meeting adjourned at 7:17PM. 
 
The foregoing minutes of the regular meeting of the Board of Trustees held on Monday, 
January 13, 2020 were approved at the regular meeting of the Board held on March 9 
2020. 
 
 

_______________________ 
Secretary 

 
 
 

_______________________ 
Chairman 



 
 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 
Action & Information Report 

Board Meeting Date: March 9, 2020 
 

 
 
 

   
 

TO:  Jackson College Board of Trustees 
FROM: Dr. Daniel J. Phelan, President 
 

 
 
 
 

Subject to be Discussed: 

4.0 Ownership Linkage 
           4.1 Public Comments (limit of 5 minutes per person) 
 

Description: 

This item on the agenda for members of the community to provide comments to the 
Board of Trustees. There is one open forum period during each regularly scheduled 
board meeting. Comments are limited to five (5) minutes unless a significant number of 
people plan to speak, in that instance the Chair may limit a person’s comments to less 
than five (5) minutes. In order to be recognized; individuals must register on the form 
provided at the door, prior to this portion of the agenda.  
 
When addressing the Board registered speakers are asked to remain at the podium, 
be respectful and civil, and are encouraged to address individual, personnel or student 
matters directly with the appropriate college department.  As a practice, the Board 
does not respond in this setting when the matter presented concerns personnel, 
student issues, or matters that are being addressed through the established grievance 
or legal processes, or otherwise a subject of review by the Board of Trustees.   

 

Resource Impact: 

None 

Requested Board Action:  

None 

Action Taken: 

None 



 
 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 
Action & Information Report 

Board Meeting Date: March 9, 2020 
 

 
 
 

   
 

TO:  Jackson College Board of Trustees 
FROM: Dr. Daniel J. Phelan, President 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Subject to be Discussed: 

5.1 Consideration of Spring Planning Session Date 

Description: 

Following additional polling of trustees, it has been determined that April 29, 2020 is 
still the best date for the 2020 Spring Planning Session. 

The session will be held on the Central Campus in Walker Hall Community Room 145.  
We will plan on beginning with breakfast at 8:00A and the meeting beginning promptly 
at 8:30A. Lunch will be provided for all attendees. We hope to conclude the day by 
about 3:30P. 

Resource Impact: 

None 

Requested Board Action:  

Consideration of April 29, 2020 for the Spring Planning Session. 

Action Taken: 

MOTION BY TRUSTEE MATHEIN “to approve April 29, 2020 as the Board’s Spring 
Planning Session. MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.   
 



 
 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 
Action & Information Report 

Board Meeting Date: March 9, 2020 
 

 
 
 

   
 

TO:  Jackson College Board of Trustees 
FROM: Dr. Daniel J. Phelan, President 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Subject to be Discussed: 

5.2 Spring Planning Session Content 

Description: 

This time has been set aside to have discussion on agenda content the Board would 
like included for the Spring Planning Session. I intend to lead the board through a 
review of the budget plan for FY ’21 and review possible budget targets prior to board 
consideration at the May board meeting. 

As a reminder, consultant Rose Mercier will be on hand to continue policy governance 
training.  

Resource Impact: 

None 

Requested Board Action:  

None 

Action Taken: 

None 



 
 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 
Action & Information Report 

Board Meeting Date: March 9, 2020 
 

 
 
 

   
 

TO:  Jackson College Board of Trustees 
FROM: Dr. Daniel J. Phelan, President 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Subject to be Discussed: 

6.1 Crockett Award Recipient 

 

At their January 21, 2020 board meeting, the Jackson College Foundation Board of 
Directors voted to approve the nomination of Mr. Woodrow Wilson as the 2020 
recipient of the Ethelene Jones Crockett Outstanding Alumni Award recipient. A copy 
of Woody’s background is included for your review. 
A vote of concurrence is requested of the Board of Trustees to affirm and award this 
recognition is requested. Vice President Valente will be on hand to address 
questions that you may have. 

 

Resource Impact: 

None 

Requested Board Action:  

Approval of Woodrow Wilson as Crockett Award Recipient. 

Action Taken: 

MOTION BY TRUSTEE CRIST “to approve Woody Wilson as the 2020 Crocket Award 
recipient. “MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.   
 







 
 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 
Action & Information Report 

Board Meeting Date: March 9, 2020 
 

 
 
 

   
 

TO:  Jackson College Board of Trustees 
FROM: Dr. Daniel J. Phelan, President 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Subject to be Discussed: 

6.2 Distinguished Service Award 

 

This time has been set aside to allow for any additional recommendations for the 
Board’s Distinguished Service Award.  Last month, the Board mentioned potential 
nominees to include: Evelyne Jones, Greg O’Connor and Al Krieger. 
 
I encourage the Board to advance a single recipient in order to maintain the exclusivity 
of this award for consideration. A decision is needed at this meeting in order to 
accommodate notification, publication, and planning. 
 

Resource Impact: 

None 

Requested Board Action:  

Selection of 2020 Distinguished Service Award recipient. 

Action Taken: 

MOTION BY TRUSTEE HOFFMAN “to approve Evelyne Jones and Al Krieger as the 
2020 Distinguished Service Award recipients. “MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.   









 
 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 
Action & Information Report 

Board Meeting Date: March 9, 2020 
 

 
 
 

   
 

TO:  Jackson College Board of Trustees 
FROM: Dr. Daniel J. Phelan, President 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Subject to be Discussed: 

6.3 Consideration of Wickwire Use 

 

Following discussion and request of the board, enclosed is information related to the 
cost of operations and future maintenance for the Wickwire House. You have seen 
much of the historical and detailed information about the house previously, though I 
will have copies on hand for reference, if needed.  
I have asked Jackson College Foundation President, Jason Valente to address the 
Board regarding the nature of the gift of the house and its implications for future gifts 
to the College. 
Additionally, the Foundation has proposed an option for future ownership of the 
house for your consideration. 
 

 

Resource Impact: 

None 

Requested Board Action:  

Consideration of the future use and ownership of Wickwire 

Action Taken: 

MOTION BY TRUSTEE MATHEIN “to authorize the President to prepare documents 
to transfer the Wickwire property ownership to the Jackson College Foundation. ROLL 
CALL VOTE. TRUSTEES LAKE, MATHEIN, HEINS, BARNES, CRIST, PATTERSON 
AND HOFFMAN VOTING AYE. MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.   
 













 
 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 
Action & Information Report 

Board Meeting Date: March 9, 2020 
 

 
 
 

   
 

TO:  Jackson College Board of Trustees 
FROM: Dr. Daniel J. Phelan, President 
 

Subject to be Discussed: 

6.4 Consideration of Millage 

 

Following discussion and research I am recommending that the Board pursue a 
headlee override on the November 2020 ballot. The filing deadline for local 
proposals is by 4:00 p.m., August 11, 2020. I would propose the use of an 
information only campaign. 
 
Our current millage rate after headlee is 1.1431.  Our original operating millage rate 
was 1.33. The headlee restoration millage 0.1869 mills would generate 
approximately $871,000 in revenue.  This does not account for uncollectable taxes.  

 
Cost to homeowners would be $0.1869 on each $1,000 of taxable valuation. The    
2018 Total taxable value per capita was $28,257. Some examples of what the cost to 
homeowners are below: 

 
$25,000 taxable value = $4.67 
$28,257 taxable value = $5.28 
$30,000 taxable value = $5.61 
$50,000 taxable value = $9.35 
$75,000 taxable value = $14.02 
$100,000 taxable value = $18.69 
 
I have enclosed historical millage request information for your review. 

Resource Impact: 

None 

Requested Board Action:  

Consideration of pursuing a headlee override on the November 2020 ballot.  

Action Taken: 

MOTION BY TRUSTEE HOFFMAN “to pursue a headlee override on the November 
2020 ballot.” ROLL CALL VOTE. TRUSTEES HOFFMAN, PATTERSON, CRIST, 
BARNES, HEINS, MATHEIN AND LAKE VOTING AYE. MOTION PASSED 
UNANIMOUSLY.   





 
 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 
Action & Information Report 

Board Meeting Date: March 9, 2020 
 

 
 
 

   
 

 
TO:  Jackson College Board of Trustees 
FROM: Dr. Daniel J. Phelan, President 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Subject to be Discussed: 

6.5 Consideration of Jackson College Foundation Board Members 

 

At their February 27, 2020 board meeting, the Jackson College Foundation Board of 
Directors approved the addition of three new members: Sara Main, Orlando 
Hampton and Dale Robert.   
Enclosed in your pack is a memo from Foundation President Valente seeking your 
ratification to add these three new members to the Board.  Also included in the 
memo are bios for each candidate.     

 

Resource Impact: 

None 

Requested Board Action:  

Consideration of new Foundation Board Members Sara Main, Orlando Hampton and 
Dale Robert. 

Action Taken: 

MOTION BY TRUSTEE CRIST “to add Sara Main, Orlando Hampton and Dale Robert 
to the Foundation Board. “MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.   
 









 
 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 
Action & Information Report 

Board Meeting Date: March 9, 2020 
 

 
 
 

   
 

 
TO:  Jackson College Board of Trustees 
FROM: Dr. Daniel J. Phelan, President 
 

Subject to be Discussed: 

6.6 Bond Authorizing Resolution 

 

As I have shared previously, we have been required by the Summit Township to 
address the significant water runoff from the Central Campus. We have used an 
engineering team that has proposed a water retention pond on the NE side of the 
campus. The cost to address this matter is both significant and was unpredicted. 
Additionally, we are closing the Sheffer Music Hall and related spaces to undertake 
renovation, made possible through the generosity of a donor. Given the timing of this 
effort, as well as the need to address ADA and deferred maintenance, I have had a 
plan developed for the improvement of the entryway to the Potter Center. I have some 
private funds to help, but not cover the entire cost of the work. 
We also have the opportunity to capture a savings on the loan against CV3, given the 
current financial markets by a refinancing. 
Therefore, I have packaged all three elements into a single plan. I have thus enclosed 
for your consideration a Bond Authorizing Resolution for the refinancing of CV3, for the 
storm water project, and for the Potter center entrance project at a cost not to exceed 
$2.12MM.   
 

 

Resource Impact: 

None 

Requested Board Action:  

Consideration of Bond Authorizing Resolution 

Action Taken: 

MOTION BY TRUSTEE LAKE “To approve the bond authorizing resolution for the 
refinancing of CV3, the storm water project and for the potter center entrance project at 
a cost not to exceed $2.12MM.”  ROLL CALL VOTE: TRUSTEES LAKE, MATHEIN, 
HEINS, BARNES, CRIST, PATTERSON AND HOFFMAN VOTING AYE.  MOTION 
PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.  







































































LIMITED TAX PLEDGE 
NOTICE 

 
PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that there will be a meeting of the Board of Trustees of Jackson 

College, Michigan. 

At said meeting, the Board of Trustees will consider for approval its proposed 2020 College 

Facilities Bonds (General Obligation - Limited Tax). The proposed 2020 College Facilities Bonds 

(General Obligation - Limited Tax), if issued, will contain the limited tax full faith and credit 

pledge of Jackson College, Michigan. 

 
 DATE OF MEETING: March 9, 2020 

 PLACE OF MEETING: Jackson College, George E. Potter Center, 2111 
Emmons Rd., Jackson MI 49201 
 (place and address) 

 HOUR OF MEETING: ___6:30________ o’clock, ____p_.m. 

 TELEPHONE NUMBER OF 
 PRINCIPAL OFFICE OF THE 
 BOARD OF TRUSTEES: ______________517-796-8443_____ 

 BOARD MINUTES ARE 
 LOCATED AT THE PRINCIPAL 
 OFFICE OF THE BOARD OF 
 TRUSTEES: 2111 Emmons Road, Jackson MI 49201 
 (address) 
 
 
 
 __Sheila Patterson_________________________, Secretary, Board of Trustees 
 (typed name or signature) 













 
 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 
Action & Information Report 

Board Meeting Date: March 9, 2020 
 

 
 
 

   
 

 
TO:  Jackson College Board of Trustees 
FROM: Dr. Daniel J. Phelan, President 
 

 
 

Subject to be Discussed: 

7.1 Principles of Policy Governance 

 

This time has been set aside for the Board, as part of our continuous improvement 
work in order, to assess the Board’s work and commitment towards the ten Policy 
Governance principles, as well as its governance practice.    

The URL link below will provide an overview of the principles that you can use for 
determining the effectiveness and efficacy of the Board’s work both in terms of this 
meeting and in general governance practice.   

https://governforimpact.org/resources/principles-of-policy-governance.html  

 

Resource Impact: 

None 

Requested Board Action:  

None 

Action Taken: 

None 

https://governforimpact.org/resources/principles-of-policy-governance.html



